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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

_ .BARBARAANTHONY . - — —

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,
v.

CREDIT ENHANCEMENT SERVICES, LLC,

~~ — - -alimited habihty company,

EIBERTY BENEFITS LLC**A s
a lumted liability company,

BROADWAY MANAGEMENT, LLC,

a limited liability company,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)T
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
.
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

a lumted 11ab111ty company,
-a/k/a TITANIUM BLUE,

PORT OF CALL CENTERS, L1LC,
a limited hablhty com, Jany,

PORT OF CALL CENTERS NY LL(.
a llmlted hablhty company, and —

FREDERICK J. DICK, | JR. S
‘individually and as the sole member ot
CREDIT ENHANCEMENT SERVICES,
LLC, LIBERTY BENEFITS, LLC,
BROADWAY MANAGEMENT, LLC,

CHECK FEE, LLC a/k/a TITANIUM BLUE,

PORT OF CALL CENTERS, LLC, and
PORT OF CALL CENTERS NY, LLC,

Defendants.
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1.
:

On April 9, 2002, Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “Commission”),
filed its Complaint for permanent injunction and other equitable relief in this matter, including
consumer re(iress, pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission Act
(“FTC Act™), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, and the Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and
Abuse Prevention Act, 15 U.S.C; §§ 6101 et seq., charging Defendants with viélating' Section 5
of the FTC Act and the FTC’s Trade Regulation Rule entitled, the “Telemarketing Sales Rule,”
16 C.F.R. Part 310, in connection with the offering for sale and sale‘of advance fee credit cards.
The original Complaint named the following Defendants: Credit Enhancement Services, LLC,
Liberty Benefits, LLC, and Frederick J. Dick,v Jr., individually and as the sole member of Credit
Enhancement Services, LLC and Liberty Benefits, LLC (“Original Defendants”). On May 29,

2002, this Court entered a Stipulation and Order of Preliminary Injunction, Granting Plaintiff an

-~ Asset Freeze, Immediate Access to Defendants’ Business Premises, and Other Equitable Relief

regarding the Original Defenflants.

On October 1, 2002, this Court granted the FT C;s motion, on consent, for leave to file an
Amended Complaint that: (1) added the following limited liability companies as Defendants:
Broadway Management, LLC, Check Fee, LLC a/k/a Titanium Blue, Port of Call Centers, LLC,
and Port of Call Centers NY, LLC (“New Defendants™), and (2) alleged additional liability on the

part of Frederick J. Dick, Jr., individually and as the sole member of the New Defendants. On

October 7, 2002, the FTC served and filed its Amended Complaint on all of the Defendants. On

.November 7, 2002, this Court granted the FTC’s motiox', on consent, for a preliminary injunction

pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Fed. R. Civ. P. 65, with asset freeze,

) i;n{gediate access to busineﬁsms/premisres and other equitable rciief as to the New Defendants.”
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Havmg rev1ewed the Commlssmn s mouon for summary Judgment on hablhty and

damages an'd the responses by Defendants thereto, the motion is granted, and , IT IS HEREBY
ORDERED ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows: |

FINDINGS OF FACI'

1. This Court has Junsdlctlon of the subject matter of th1s case and all parties hereto;

2. Venue in the Eastern District of New York is proper under 28US.C. § 1391(b) and (¢)
 and15 US.C. §53(b); | N
3. The acts and practices of the Defendants were or are in or aﬁ'ecﬁng commerce, as

“commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44;

e g ST L e O e sl
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- 4. The Amended Complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against

Defendants under Sections 5(a), 13(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b)

and 57b, and Sectlon 6(b) of the Telemarketmg Act, 15 US.C. § 6105(b); and

5. Enu'y of this Order i is in the public interest.

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Order the followmg definitions shall apply:

1. “Plamtlff ’ means the Federal Trade Comrmssmn or Comnussron

“anted Llablhty Company Defendants” means Creth Enhancement Services, LLC,

,,
N

leerty Beneﬁts LLC Broadway Management, LLC Check Fee, LLC a/k/a Titanium

| B Blue Port of Call Centers, LLC and Port of Call Center NY LLC and thelr SUCCessors,

A AR R D S R HHa-

assrgns; afﬁhates, or subs1d1anes '

3. “Ind1v1dual Defendant” means Fredenck J chk, Jr mdlwdually and as the sole member

of the Lmuted anbrhty Company Defendants.
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4. “Defendants” means the L1m1ted Llablhty Company Defendants and the Individual

5. “Advance Fee Credit Cards” means the advertisement, promotion, offering for sale,
purported sale, or sale of any product or service represented to register credit or debit
accounts m exchange fora fee or snmllar payment by the purchaser prior to the issuance
of a credit or debit account, mcludmg, but not hrmted to, a merchandlse buying club

membership card that offers an extension of credlt.

6. “Assets” means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, claim to, or expectation to

receive, any real or personal property, including, but not limited to, “goods,”

“instruments,” “equipment,” “fixtures,” “general intangibles,” “inventory,” “checks,” or
“notes,” (as these terms are defined in the Uniform Commercial Code), lines of credit, all
cash, and any other thing of value, wherever located.

1. “Assxstmg others includes: (l) performmg customer service functions, including, but not

[]

limited to, receiving or responding to consumer complamts, receiving identifying and

ﬁnancial information from consumers, and communicating with consumers about

extensmns of credlt (2) developmg or prov1d1ng or arrangmg for the development or

provxs1on of sales scnpts or any other marketmg matena.l 3) prov1d1ng names of, or

=
*

2 i

arrangmg for the prowsron of names of, potent1a1 customers, or (4) performmg marketing

7 ~ services of any kind

s | N 8 | “Consur::er means a purchaser -custome; subscnberijnamral person.

% - 9; 7 “éredﬂ-related goods or services” me;s;an;good; ;;nw whlch 1s marketed,

; : : , advertised, offered for sale or sol_d to consumers as a method by which consumers may,
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credit or credit device,
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directly or indirectly, establish or obtain any extension of
mcludmg, but not hmlted to, credit cards, merc erchandise buying club membership cards
that offer an extension of credit, loans, or financing; or as a method to restore, repair or

1mprove derogatory mformatlon contained in consumers’ credit reporting files; oras a

method to consohdate or hqmdate debts

usage of the term in

“Document” is synonymous in meaning and equal in scope to the

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes all computer files and written,

ials of every kind in the possession, custody, or control of the

recorded, and graphic mater
spondence and drafts of

Defendants. The term “documents” includes electronic corre

documents, non-identical copies of documents produced from a single file, identical
ents the originals

copies of documents produced from different files, and copies of docum

of h1ch are not in the possessmn, custody or control of the Defendants. The term

“computer ﬁlcs mcludes mformatlon stored in, or accessible through, computer or other

information retrieval systems.

“Material” means hkely%affect a person’s choice of, or conduct regarding, goods or

127 B

“Person means any md1v1dual group, umncorporated association, limited liability

7 company lnmted or general partnershlp, corporatlon, or other business entity.

"l'clemarketmg > “telemarketer and scller” are defined in Section 310.2 of the

-

13.

Telemarketmg Sales Rule 16 (‘ F F § 310. 3.
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PERMANENT BAN

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that: - -~ = : —~

A. . Defendant Frederick J. Dick, Jr., whether acting individually, directly, indirectly,
or through any corporation, limited liability company, partnership, subsidiary, division, trust, or
other device, is hereby permanently restrained and enjoined ﬁ';m ;g;mg in; receiving any
remuneration of any kind whatsoever from; or holding any ownership interést, share, or stock in
(except for shares of stock in a publicly traded company) or serving as an employee, independent
contractor, officer, director, member, partner, trustee, or general manager of, any business entity
engaged in whole or in part in the marketing by any means whatsoever, including, b_ut not limited

to, telemarketing, direct mail, e-mail, the Internet, the Worldwide Web, or any web site;

advertising; promoting; offering for sale; sale; or purported sale of any advance fee credit card or

,,ény other credit-related goods or services, or assisting others in the same; and

B. Nothing in this Order shall be read as an exception to this Paragraph L
IL
PROHIBITED BUSINESS PRACTICES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

_A. . In connection with the marketing, including, but not limited to, telemarketing,

___ direct mail, e-mail, the Intemet, the Worldwide Web, or any web site; advertising; promoting;

offering for sale; sale; or purported sale of any good or service, or assisting others in the same,

» ) _.— Defendants, and their successors, assigns, ofﬁéers, directors, members, agents, attorneys,

t servants, employees, salespersons, independent contractors, and all other persons or eﬂtitiw in
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active concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal
service or otherwise, whether acting directly, indirectly, or through any corporation, limited
 liability company, parfnershiﬁsubsidial%division;mlst,or other device, are hereby permanently
“restrained and enjoined from misrepresenting, expressly or by implication, either orally or in
writing, any material fact, including, but not iimited to, the following:
1. That after paying Defendants a fee, consumers will, or are highly likely to,
receive an unsecured major credit card, such as a VISA or MasterC@

credit card; and

2. That Defendants will unconditionally refund the purchase pﬁce ifa
consumer seeks a refund within 30 days of receipt of Defendants’ package;
B. Defendants and their successors, assigns, officers, directors, members, agents, |
attorneys, servants, émployees, salesi)ersons, independent contractors, and all othér persons or
entities in active cbncert or participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by
- personal service or otherwi.se, whether-acting directly, ihdirectly, or -through- any corporation,-
limited lLiability comp‘any, partnership, subsidiary, division, trust, or other device, are hereby

- permanently restrained and -enjoined from violating, or assisting others with violating, the

- Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, including, but not limited to:

1.- - Violating Section 310.3(;)(2)(iii) of the Telemarketing Sales Rule,

16 C.F.R.‘_‘§ 310.3(a)(2)(iii), by misrepresenting, directly, indirectly, or by

AR ST et it g O T | R R

. implication, any material aspect of the'performance, efficacy, nature or

- leneTEsst o= - ocentral characteristics of goods or services that are the subject of a sales

CTT o offer, in_cluding, but not limited to, the representétion that after paying
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Defendants a fee, consumers will, or are highly likely to, receive an
unsecured major credit card, such as a VISA or MasterCard credit card;

2. Violating Section 310.3(a)(2)(iv) of the Telemarketing Sales Rule,

- 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(2)(iv), by misrepresenting, direcﬂy, indirectly, or by
implication, any material aspect of the nature or terms of the Defendants’
refund, cancellation, exchange, or repurchase policies; and

| 3. Violating Section 310.4(a)(4) of the Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R.
§ 310.4(a)(4), by requesting or receiving payment of any fee or
consideration in advance of obtaining a loan or other extension of credit
when the Defendants or their telemarketers have guaranteed or represented-
- ahigh likelihood of success’in obtaining or arranging a loan or other
extension Qf credit for a berson; and
4. Misrepresenting, directly, indirectly, expressly, or by implication, any fact

material to a consumer’s decision to purchase such good or service; and

~C.  —Nothing in this Paragraph or in any other Paragraph of this Order shall void any of

.. ... the ban provisions set forth in Paragraph I of this Order.

IIL.

-——MONETARY RELIEF AND CONSUMER REDRESS

-~ ITISFURTHERORDERED that:— .- - - =

-

v A. . Judgment in the amount of Eleven Million, Seven Hundred and Seventy-seven

- - #-Thousand, Eight Hundred and Eighty-one Dollars, and Forty-one Cents ($11,777,881.41) is
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__ .. _hereby entered against Defendants, jointly and severally, for equitable monetary relief, including

but not limited to consumer redress and/or disgorgement, and for paying any attendant expenses

!

" of administering any redress fund;

B. | Defendants relinquish all right, title and interest to all frozen assets held by or on

. behalf of the Commission pursuant to the Stipulation and Order of Preliminary Injurction,

" Granting Plaintiff an Asset Freeze, Ilnmediate Aceess_to Defendants’ Business Premises, and
Other Equitable Relief regarding the Original Defendants, entered on May 29, 2002, and the

Stipulation and Order of Preliminary Injunction, Granting Plaintiff an Asset Freeze, Immediate

.,,‘_Wm;gm;ﬁiﬁw(ﬁ,mﬂ;@ﬁ\ “ ,. o

Access to Defendants’ Business Premises, and Other Equitable Relief regarding the New

Defendants, entered on November 7, 2002, and all assets subject to claims by the Commission.

This includes, but is not limited to, all extraterritorial assets as well as assets in the United States;
_the assets identified by the Commission, as set forth in Paragraph I of the May 29® and

 November 7* Orders; and all of the Defendants’ assets held, controlled by, or in the custody of
'

United Capturdyne Technologles, Inc -

- C All such frozen funds and assets shall be transferred directly to the FTC pursuant

to Section IV of this Order, in partial satisfaction of this judgment.

D. Defendants shall remain Jomtly and severally llable to pay. to the Commission

~consumer redress in an amount equal to the $11,777,881.41 judgment, less any part of that

judgment that is collected from the frozen assets. Defendants shall assist the Commission with

AR Rl R

its eﬁ'orts to collect on the ]udgment that is not satisfied by sun'ender of Defendants frozen

~ assets, mcludmg, but not limited to, prov1d1ng the Commssnon wrth semxannual reports of their

| income and expenses, sworn to under penalty of perjury, and their tax returns. The semiannual
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